1986

Glade Stevens, Milton Stevens, and Margaret Stevens v. Ellen I. Stevens : Brief of Appellant

Utah Supreme Court

STATEMENT OF ISSUES

This is an appeal from a Judgment and Decree of the Fourth District Court, entered subsequent to an earlier Decree of Divorce, dividing the assets of the parties, establishing support obligations and ordering costs and attorneys fees. No Cross-Appeal has been filed. Appellant has cited six errors as follows: (1) Whether the Court erred in failing to submit written findings with regard to the value of each of the contested items of property of the marital estate; (2) Whether the Court erred in failing to set a dollar figure on the Respondent's income; (3) Whether there was a fair and equitable division of the property of the parties; (4) Whether the award of child support and alimony was adequate; (5) Whether the order

concerning medical and dental costs is adequate; and (6) Whether it was error for the Court to refuse to award costs incurred in obtaining an appraisal of the farming and trucking businesses owned by the parties.

STATUTORY AND RULES PROVISIONS

Section 21-5-8, UTAH CODE ANNOTATED 1953, (AS AMENDED)

The fees and compensation of witnesses in all civil causes must be paid by the party who causes such witnesses to attend, and no witness shall be obligated to attend court in a civil cause when subpoenaed unless his mileage and fees for one day's attendance are tendered or paid to him on demand, nor unless his fees for attendance for each day are tendered or paid to him on demand. The fees of witnesses paid in civil causes may be taxed as costs against the losing party.

Section 30-3-3, UTAH CODE ANNOTATED (1953), AS AMENDED

The Court may order either party to pay to the clerk a sum of money for the separate support and maintenance of the adverse party and the children, and to enable such party to prosecute or defend the action.

Section 30-3-5, UTAH CODE ANNOTATED (1953), AS AMENDED (In effect at the time of trial)

(1) When a decree of divorce is rendered, the court may include in it such orders in relation to the children, property and parties, and the maintenance and health care of the parties and children, as may be equitable. The court shall include in every decree of divorce an order assigning responsibility for the payment of reasonable and necessary medical and dental expenses of the dependent children. If coverage is available at a reasonable cost, the court may also include an order requiring the purchase and maintenance of appropriate health, hospital, and dental care insurance for those children. The court shall have continuing jurisdiction to make such subsequent changes or new orders with respect to the support and maintenance of the parties, the custody of the children and their support, maintenance and health and dental care, or the distribution of the property as shall be reasonable and necessary. Visitation

rights of parents, grandparents, and other relatives shall take into consideration the welfare of the child.

(2) Unless a decree of divorce specifically provides otherwise, any order of the court that a party pay alimony to a former spouse shall automatically terminate upon the remarriage of that former spouse, unless that marriage is annulled and found to be void ab initio, in which case alimony shall resume, providing that the party paying alimony be made a party to the action of annulment and that party's rights are determined.

(3) Any order of the court that a party pay alimony to a former spouse shall be terminated upon application of that party establishing that the former spouse is residing with a person of the opposite sex, unless it is further established by the person receiving alimony that the relationship or association between them is without any sexual contact.

Section 78-45-7(4), UTAH CODE ANNOTATED, (1953) AS AMENDED

(4) In determining the amount of prospective support on an ex parte or other motion for temporary support, the court shall use a uniform statewide assessment formula, adjusted for regional differences, prior to rendering the support order. The formula shall provide for all relevant factors which can be readily identified and shall allow for reasonable deductions from the obligor's earnings for taxes, work related expenses, and living expenses. The assessment formula shall be established by the Department of Social Services and periodically reviewed by the Judicial Council under Subsection 78-3-21(3).

RULE 52(b), UTAH RULES OF CIVIL PROCEDURE

(b) Amendment. Upon motion of a party made not later than 10 days after entry of judgment the court may amend its findings or make additional findings and may amend the judgment accordingly. The motion may be made with a motion for a new trial pursuant to Rule 59. When findings of fact are made in actions tried by the court without a jury, the question of the sufficiency of the evidence to support the findings may thereafter be raised whether or not the party raising the question has made in the district court an objection to such findings or has made either a motion to amend them, a motion for judgment, or a motion for a new trial.

RULE 54(d), UTAH RULES OF CIVIL PROCEDURE

(d) Costs.

(1) To Whom Awarded. Except when express provision therefore is made either in a statute of this state or in these

rules, costs shall be allowed as of course to the prevailing party unless the court otherwise directs; provided, however, where an appeal or other proceedings for review is taken, costs of the action, other than costs in connection with such appeal or other proceedings for review, shall abide the final determination of the cause. Costs against the State of Utah, its officers and agencies shall be imposed only to the extent permitted by law.

RULE 59(a) & (e), UTAH RULES OF CIVIL PROCEDURE

(a) Grounds. Subject to the provisions of Rule 61, a new trial may be granted to all or any of the parties and on all or part of the issues, for any of the following causes: provided, however, that on a motion for a new trial in an action tried without a jury, the court may open the judgment if one has been entered, take additional testimony, amend findings of fact and conclusions of law or make new findings and conclusions, and direct the entry of a new judgment:

. . . .

(e) Motion to Alter or Amend a Judgment. A motion to alter or amend a judgment shall be served not later than 10 days after entry of the judgment.

RULE 2.9(b), RULES OF PRACTICE IN THE DISTRICT AND CIRCUIT COURTS

(b) Copies of the proposed Findings, Judgments, and/or Orders shall be served on opposing counsel before being presented to the court for signature unless the court otherwise orders. Notice of objections thereto shall be submitted to the court and counsel within 5 days after service.

STATEMENT OF THE CASE

This is an appeal from the Judgment and Decree of the Fourth Judicial District Court of Millard County, dated May 17, 1985. The Court had previously entered a Decree of Divorce on November 27, 1984, granting a divorce to the Appellant but reserving the remainder of the issues for trial (PL. 232). Following the trial on November 27 and 28, 1984, the Court requested both sides to

prepare written final arguments as an aid to the Court in deciding the issues (PL. 262, 280). The court made a written decision on January 28, 1985, deciding all of the issues reserved for trial and directing that counsel for Respondents prepare Findings of Fact, Conclusions of Law and Decree consistent with the decision and submit it to counsel for Appellant for approval. (PL. 303). The Draft of these documents was mailed to Counsel for the Appellant on February 7, 1985 (PL. 324, 333), on February 21, 1985. Appellant filed an objection thereto on the basis that it did not conform to the Court's Decision. (PL. 308). Counsel for Appellant submitted, along with his objection, proposed Findings of Fact and Conclusions of Law and Judgment and Decree felt to be in conformance with the Court's Decision. (PL. 338, 345). At the same time he filed a Memorandum of Costs and Disbursements. (PL. 310). In a written Ruling dated April 17, 1985, the Court decided that Respondent's drafts did not follow the Court's Decision and directed that counsel for the Respondent re-draft the documents essentially in conformance with those submitted by Appellant. (PL. 349). In a separate ruling that same date the Court approved all of Appellant's claimed costs except those of Certified Business Appraisals, Inc., in the amount of \$2,531.15. (PL. 353).

On May 28, 1985, following the signing and entry of the Judgment and Decree on May 20, 1985, Appellant filed a Motion to

Amend Findings, Motion to Amend Judgment, and Motion for New Trial pursuant to provisions of Rules 52(b) and 59 (a) and (e), Utah Rules of Civil Procedure. (PL. 367). No response was made thereto. By Minute Entry dated June 19, 1985, the Court denied Appellant's motions without comment. (PL.382).

Appellant moved for summary disposition before this court on August 15, 1985. Respondent likewise requested summary disposition on August 22, 1985. This Court denied both motions on September 11, 1985.

Respondent moved to dismiss the appeal on January 4, 1986, on the basis that Appellant had accepted the benefits of the decree and therefore was not entitled to an appeal. Oral Argument was held on the motion on January 20, 1986, and the motion was denied that same date.

STATEMENT OF FACTS

The trial in this matter primarily involved the identification and valuation of the marital estate of the Appellant and the Respondent Glade Stevens. Some of the farm machinery and farm land being utilized in the farming operation by the Respondent Glade Stevens, belonged to his father, the Respondent Milton Stevens. Each of the respondents testified concerning the ownership of and value of numerous items of farm and trucking equipment. (TR 30-58, 75-177, 392-449). They presented the testimony of a cousin Ross Stevens, for the same

purpose (TR. 188-196). They presented the testimony of Gordon S. Ogier, a hay broker, on the value of baled hay. (TR. 188-196). They presented the testimony of Bruce Whatcott and LeGrand Warner, farm implement dealers, on the value of a combine, a windrower, a tractor, a hay hauler, a bale wagon, a diesel truck and a silo (TR. 196-205).

Appellant presented the testimony of a professional business appraiser concerning the value of the items of real property and machinery utilized on the farming operation and Respondent Glade Stevens trucking business, together with the value of the two operations as a going concern. (TR 276-392; Ex. 12). There was a wide disparity between the values alleged. (Ex 9; Ex 12). Further, there was substantial conflict of testimony concerning the Respondent Glade Steven's income for the purpose of determining an appropriate amount of child support and alimony. (TR. 131, 141-143).

After making it's decision concerning the ownership of the property, the Court proceded to divide the marital estate between the Appellant and the Respondent Glade Stevens. The Court failed to attach a value to any of the items of property divided between the parties, failed to make a finding as to the income of the Respondent Glade Stevens, and failed to make a finding concerning the value of farming and trucking operations as going concerns for purposes of distribution and failed to distribute the farming

and trucking businesses to either of the parties.

Such other facts as may be necessary to a resolution of the issues are set forth within the respective arguments.

SUMMARY OF ARGUMENT

Point I. Appellant's first assigned error is that the District Court failed to make specific findings with regard to the dollar value of any of the property of the marital estate when there was a substantial conflict between the parties. Appellant did not prepare the findings signed by the Court and did make a motion to amend them. The case of Jones_v._Jones, 700 P.2d 1072 (Utah 1985) is dispositive of this issue.

Point II. Appellant's second assigned error is similar to the first in that the Court failed to make specific findings with regard to the amount of income being earned by the Husband. This finding is necessary in order for this Court to determine the adequacy of the child support and alimony awards. The case of Montoya_v._Montoya, 696 P.2d 1193 (Utah 1985) is dispositive.

Point III. The third assigned error is that the appellant did not receive her fair share of the marital estate. Although This court cannot make a final determination of this issue without first remanding the case for further findings, two other questions within this assigned error should be addressed at this time. First the ownership by the marital estate of property awarded by the Court to the Husband's parents, and second the

distribution of property not mentioned in the findings and decree.

Point IV. The fourth assigned error is that the level of child support and alimony is inadequate in light of the entire record. Although the District Court failed to make findings concerning the husband's income, there is sufficient evidence in the record from the husband's tax returns to determine that his annual available income, after adding back in the depreciation allowance and travel and entertainment expenses, averaged in excess of \$54,000.00 annually.

Point V. The fifth noted error is that the District Court, in making its order that the husband provide health and dental insurance for the minor children, and requiring the parties to pay equally any expenses not covered by the insurance, failed to set a maximum on the amount of deductible on the insurance policy, thus leaving the wife with the potential for large annual medical and dental expenses.

Point VI. The sixth assigned error is that the District Court refused to award either as costs or as part of the equitable payment of the divorce litigation expenses the cost of obtaining an appraisal of the property in the marital estate. The Court refused to make this award on the mistaken belief that the Appellant had failed to show that property belonging to the husband's parents belonged to the marital estate, when in fact

such was not the purpose of the appraisal, which did not appraise any of the parents farm land and only minimally any farm equipment owned by them.

ARGUMENT

POINT I

THE COURT ERRED IN FAILING TO SUBMIT WRITTEN FINDINGS WITH REGARD TO THE VALUE OF EACH OF THE CONTESTED ITEMS OF PROPERTY OF THE MARITAL ESTATE.

As part of Appellant's Motion to Amend Findings, Motion to Amend Judgment, and Motion for New Trial, Appellant requested the District Court to make and enter findings concerning the value of each item of the parties property as it was required to do when there exists a serious question as to the value of one or more of the assets. This motion was summarily denied.

In Jones_v._Jones, 700 P.2d 1072, 1074 (Utah 1985), this Court held the following with regard to findings of value in property division issues:

On the present record, we cannot determine whether the trial Court distributed the property equitably. In_re_Marriage_of_Martin, 22 Wash.App. 295, 588 P.2d 1235, 1236 (1979). To avoid problems of this nature, we require that when one of the parties to a property distribution raises a serious question as to the value of one or more of the assets, the trial Court's distribution of those assets should be based upon written findings of fact that will permit appellate review. Cf. Chandler_v._West, Utah, 610 P.2d 1299, 1301 (1980).

In so deciding this court accepted the general rule in effect in the surrounding Western states. See Wilford_v._Wilford, 699 P.2d

105 (Nev. 1985); Lawrence_v._Harvey, 607 P.2d 551, (Mont. 1980); Bailey_v._Bailey, 689 P.2d 216 (Idaho App. 1984).

However, this Court, in the Jones case, denied the wife her requested relief with the following language at 700 P.2d 724-5:

Normally, we would grant the remedy sought by the wife and remand for findings on the specific value of the assets. In this case, however, the wife's attorney prepared the inadequate findings of fact she challenges on appeal and the conclusions of law and decree of divorce all of which the court entered without alteration. Counsel for the wife made no motion to have the trial court amend the findings to include values. See Utah R. Civ. P. 52(b). The wife cannot come now, albeit through new counsel, and complain of her own failure to include specific property values in the findings of fact. She has waived the claim.

In the instant case the Appellant's counsel did not prepare the findings or decree and did in fact make a motion under Rule 52(b), Utah Rules of Civil Procedure to have them amended to include the valuations. Respondent has argued, however, that since Appellant submitted a draft Findings of Fact and Conclusions of Law, language from which was incorporated into the accepted findings, that she is thereby foreclosed from complaining about the substance of them. (Reply to Motion for Summary Disposition, filed with this Court, August 22, 1985). However, the Court in Jones stated that both the preparation of the findings, and the failure to move to amend, resulted in a waiver of the requirement that the court specify values. By implication the Court stated that even though her counsel had prepared the

challenged findings, had there been a motion under Rule 52(b), she would have saved her objection.

In the instant case Appellant's counsel did not prepare the offending findings. As part of his objection to the draft prepared by counsel for Respondents pursuant to Rule 2.9(b) Rules of Practice in the District and Circuit Courts, findings and judgment drafts were submitted because, as stated in the Objection, "the deviations [from the written decision] are so numerous and occur throughout both document to such an extent" that it was simpler to prepare new drafts than to list each deficit. (PL. 308). To the extent that the Court construes that the findings ultimately accepted and signed by the lower court were prepared by the Appellant, she adequately cured any claim that she concurred in those findings by filing her motion under Rule 52(b).

More importantly, however, it should not be held that the preparation of the findings in strict conformance with the Court's written instructions, results in a finding that the party ordered by the court to do so may not thereafter object thereto. Such would be an intolerable conclusion.

Although a motion under Rule 52(b), may be made prior to entry of the judgment and may apparently be made in regard to "proposed" findings, Zions First National Bank, v. C'est Bon Venture, 613 P.2d 515 (Utah 1980), there is no requirement that

it be done in that fashion. Rule 52(b) provides merely that the motion be made "not later than 10 days after entry of judgment." In the instant case that was done.

Appellant timely requested that the court make specific findings, citing this Court's decision in Jones_v._Jones, supra. There was no objection to that request by the Respondents. Yet the Court denied the requested relief. Such refusal was an abuse of discretion and the case should be remanded to the District Court for entry of appropriate findings.

POINT II

THE COURT ERRED IN FAILING TO SET A DOLLAR FIGURE ON THE RESPONDENT'S INCOME.

In the Court's ruling, incorporated in the Findings of Fact and Conclusions of Law and the Judgment and Decree, the Court ordered child support in the sum of \$175.00 per month per child for each of three children. The Court further awarded the Appellant alimony in the sum of \$175.00 per month. (PL. 356).

There was considerable conflict in the testimony concerning the Respondent Glade Stevens' income. In addition to his tax returns, submitted at trial, (TR. 445; Ex. Un-numbered), Appellant testified that occasionally the Respondent Glade Stevens received a considerable amount of money in cash which went unreported (TR. 275).

In the Findings of Fact and Conclusions of Law the Court found "that although the income tax returns supplied by the

plaintiff on their face may not justify the award of support and alimony hereinabove provided, the Court has determined from the evidence submitted at the trial, that a substantial amount of tax-free income is generated by the plaintiff's activities, and that he can afford to pay the sums for support and alimony as hereinabove provided." (PL. 358). However, the Court made no finding as to what his income actually was.

As an ancillary to Appellant's argument in her Motion to Amend Findings, Motion to Amend Judgment and Motion for New Trial that the support order was inadequate (Point IV, *infra*), appellant requested the court to enter a specific finding as to the Respondent Glade Stevens' income. (PL. 376-7). The motion was summarily denied. (PL.382).

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