1986

Jane Doe v. Utah Department of Public Safety;
Peace Officer Standards and Training; Ted E.
Leamons, Director; William L. Flink and John
Does I thorough IV : Brief of Respondent

Utah Supreme Court

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

SUMMARY OF THE ARGUMENT

The Utah "Expungement and Sealing of Records" statute, Utah Code Annotated Section 77-18-2 (1980), is ambiguous on its face as to its applicability to P.O.S.T.. The history and intent of the framers was to provide a meaningful opportunity for ex-felons to rehabilitate and assimilate back into society, especially through employment. Neither the expungement statute nor the P.O.S.T. authorizing statute, Utah Code Annotated Section 67-15-1 et seq. (1985), provide for any but the court to determine when an expungement should be granted, and once given, only the pardoned person may reopen the records.

ARGUMENT

The public policy behind the enactment of Utah's "Expungement and sealing of records" statute has been the same since its inception, when "the legislature intended that trial

courts should have considerable authority to reform wrongdoers." William v. Harris, 106 Utah 387, 149 P.2d 640, 642 (1944). See also State v. Zolantakis, 70 Utah 296, 259 P. 1044 (1927). In effect, expungement embodies the age old notion of "forgiving and forgetting", thereby providing the ex-felon an opportunity to start over again, unhampered by the attendant disabilities of her past conviction. While this has been the basic premise behind the policy of expungement, a split exists among the states as to the actual effect an expungement. Gough, The Expungement of Adjudication Records of Juvenile and Adult Offenders: A Problem of Status, 1966 Wash. Univ. L.Q. 147 (1966).

In Utah, the expungement statute originated in 1943 when the legislature amended the statute on probation, to include the following language in pertinent part:

Where it appears to the court from the report ... that the defendant has complied with the conditions of such probation the court may, if it be compatible with the public interest ... terminate the sentence or set aside the plea of guilty or conviction of the defendant, and dismiss the action and discharge the defendant. (emphasis added)

U.C.A. Section 105-36-17 (1943)

The case law during this period indicated that the statute "was enacted for the court under the unusual circumstances and for good cause to expunge the record of crime." State v. Schreiber, 121 Utah 653, 245 P.2d 222, 224 (1952).

The "Expungement of records" statute was explicitly created in 1973 when the legislature enacted Section 77-35-17.5, which stated in part:

(2) If the court finds that ... the rehabilitation of the petitioner has been attained to the satisfaction of the court, it shall enter an order that all records in the petitioner's case ... be sealed.

(3) ... the petitioner shall be deemed judicially pardoned and the petitioner may thereafter respond to any inquiries relating to convictions of crimes as though that conviction never occurred.

Utah Code Annotated Section 77-35-17.5 (1973)

In the case of State v. Jones, 581 P.2d 141 (1978), the Utah Supreme Court construed the new statute, holding that an ex-felon whose record had been expunged could not be impeached as a witness on his own account. The Court's holding implied that the expungement erased the ex-felon's past records. In 1980, both statutes described above were replaced by the present "Expungement and sealing of records" statute, Utah Code Annotated Section 77-18-2, when the legislature recodified the Code of Criminal Procedure. This most recent statute generally remains the same as its predecessor except in the following relevant parts:

(1)(b) If the court finds ... that the rehabilitation of petitioner has been to the satisfaction of the court, it shall order that all records ... be sealed.

(2)(a) In any case in which a person has been arrested ... that individual after 12 months, ... may petition the court ... for an order expunging any and all records of arrest and detention which may have been made, if any of the following occurred:...

(iii) The record of any proceedings against him has been sealed pursuant to subsection (1). (emphasis added)

(3) ... In the event an employer asks concerning arrests which have been expunged or convictions the records of which have been sealed, the person who received expungement of arrest or judicial pardon may answer as though the arrest or conviction had not occurred. (emphasis added)

Utah Code Annotated Section 77-18-2 (1980)

A general rule of statutory construction directs courts to ascertain the legislative intent of the statute and favor the public interest and purpose behind the statute. See 82 C.J.S. Statutes Section 311 (1953). See also Utah Code Annotated Section 68-3-2 (1985); Bateman v. Board of Examiners, 7 Utah 2d 221, 322 P.2d 381 (1958).

The present Utah expungement statute is unquestionably ambiguous as concerns the right of an agency such as P.O.S.T. to consider the past expunged convictions of an ex-felon. Consequently, the court must look to the legislative intent behind the present expungement statute.

The Federal Court in Thompson v. Department of the Treasury, 557 F. Supp. 158 (D. Utah 1982) was correct insofar as it found that "[t]here is no explanation in the legislative history for the changes in the amended statute...." However, the attached affidavit of Professor Boyce provides some insight into the legislative intent behind the enactment. Affidavit of Ronald N. Boyce (July 30, 1986) (discussing U.C.A. 77-18-2 on expungement). Professor Boyce was a member of the Utah State Bar Code of Criminal Procedure Committee responsible for the

drafting of U.C.A. 77-18-2, the present expungement statute. According to Professor Boyce, the Committee's primary concern while drafting U.C.A. 77-18-2 was to provide a meaningful opportunity for an ex-felon to rehabilitate and assimilate back into society. At the time the committee viewed employment as the greatest bar to rehabilitation for ex-felons. Consequently, the intent of the committee was to remove the attendant disabilities of a past conviction for an ex-felon, especially with respect to employers. This intent largely conforms with the Model Rules, on which the committee heavily relied in reaching its conclusion.

Under the Model Rules for Law Enforcement a provision has been made for "Closing" or sealing the record of an individual's past conviction:

Rule 602 Designation of a Closed Record
(B) Conviction. If a person has been arrested and convicted, the record of that conviction shall be designated a closed record ten years after the date of the person's last known arrest or conviction....

Model Rules for Law Enforcement Release of Arrest and Conviction Records, College of Law, Arizona State University and University Police Foundation 20, 36 (1974) (Hereinafter referred to as Release Records).

Under the Model Rules 401(v), dissemination of past arrest records to prospective employers, even those not closed, is permitted "to the extent expressly and specifically required by state or federal statute or federal executive order." Id. at

22. It might be noted that prior to the alteration of Rule 401(v) which resulted in the present proscription against dissemination, the prior subsection "permitted release when, in the judgment of an agency head, reasons of national security so required." Id. at 24.

The commentary to Rule 401 suggests that "the best policy is for law enforcement agencies to eliminate altogether the voluntary dissemination of record information for employment related purposes." Id. at 24. It was apparently felt that concerns for national security would be covered by statute or executive order. See Executive Order No. 10,450, 3 C.F.R. 936 (1953), and Cole v. Young, 351 U.S. 536 (1956).

In short, the Model Rules for Law Enforcement, upon which U.C.A. Section 77-18-2 was patterned, provided for the "closing of records" for any person who maintained a clean record for ten years. Upon the closing of a record, only the person who was the subject of the record could re-open the file. The drafters of the Model Rules made clear their desire to promote the rehabilitation of ex-felons as well as their recognition that the lack of employment opportunities was the greatest impediment to this goal. (See Release of Records at 20.)

The fact that impediments to employment create the greatest barrier to rehabilitation is well supported. In the Report of the President's Task Force on Prisoner Rehabilitation,

10 J. Offender Counseling, Services and Rehab. 195 (1985),
(Hereinafter referred to as Task Force), it was recommended
that:

The United States Civil Service Commission should
devise and put into operation a plan to stimulate
Federal Employment of ex-offenders. Id. at 201.

The Task Force cogently indicated that:

Surely, the very first step toward improving its
correctional process that any government -- municipal,
state or Federal -- should take is to allow ex-
offenders to be employed by government. The
government is scarcely persuasive when it urges
industry to adopt employment policies toward ex-
offenders that itself is unwilling to adopt. Id. at
201.

In light of the foregoing, it becomes clear that the
only traceable "legislative intent" behind the expungement
statute was to promote rehabilitation by removing impediments to
employment opportunity. It is a well recognized fact that
evidence of a past arrest record is tantamount to an automatic
foreclosure to employment. See Schwartz and Skolnick, Two
Studies of Legal Stigma, 10 Soc. Probs. 133 (1962); Special
Project -- The Collateral Consequences of a Criminal Conviction,
23 Vand. L. Rev. 929 (1970).

The effect of allowing P.O.S.T. to consider the past
expunged convictions of an offender is to bar that individual
from state employment, as a general rule. The underlying intent

behind the enactment of the Utah Code should be given effect by denying P.O.S.T.'s request to review the respondent's past record.

The appellant cites to Thompson v. Department of Treasury, 557 F. Supp. 158 (D. Utah 1982), in support of the proposition that the amendment to the expungement statute was intended "to limit the effect of a judicial pardon and expungement". Id. at 167.

However, this is an erroneous interpretation of the holding in that case. The facts of Thompson involved an ex-felon who had been previously found guilty of violating 18 U.S.C.A. Section 922, a federal firearms statute. Under the statute it was illegal for anyone who had a prior felony conviction to carry firearms. Thompson, who was employed as private firearms trainer for private security guards, obtained a judicial pardon and an expungement of his records under Utah law. One of the issues in Thompson was "whether a state expungement relieves a former convict of the Section 922 disability". Id. at 166. Under Title VII, which encompasses Section 922, a provision was made for exempting any person from the Section 1202 disability who "...has been pardoned by the chief executive of a State and expressly been authorized by ...such chief executive ...to receive, possess, or transport in commerce a firearm." Id. at 164 (citing 18 U.S.C. App. Section 1203). Such an exemption clearly distinguishes Thompson from

the case at bar where no other relief exists for the ex-felon except for the expungement statute.

The appellant cites several other cases to support the proposition that P.O.S.T. cannot reasonably be regarded as an employer and therefore, as a licensing agency, can require disclosure of expunged convictions. However, the cases cited do not directly parallel the case at bar with respect to expungements.

In Dixon v. McMullen, 527 F. Supp. 711 (N.D. Tex. 1981) the facts involved an ex-felon who had received a gubernatorial pardon which Utah does not have. The Texas Court, after reviewing the history of "pardons" concluded that "a pardon implies guilt." Id. at 718.

The case of Patt v. Nevada State Board of Accountancy, 93 Nev. 548, 571 P.2d 105 (1977), did not involve an expungement. In Patt, the petitioner had received an honorable discharge from probation. Neither the statute nor the court's discussion of it considered the removal of attendant disabilities to a conviction.

In Meyer v. Board of Medical Examiners, 34 Cal. 2d 62, 206 P.2d 1085 (1949), the petitioner had received a court order terminating his probation and dismissing the information against him pursuant to Section 1203.3 of the California Penal Code. The petitioner challenged the right of the Board of Medical Examiners to suspend his license based upon his conviction. The

court reviewed the respondent Board's authority to suspend the license under Section 1203.4 which released the petitioner from all penalties and disabilities resulting from the offense. The court then concluded that the order did not "remove or wipe out the conviction", where 1203.4 contained a provision for allowing the conviction to be used against the petitioner in any later prosecution. Id. at 1086, 1087.

The Utah statute specifically blocks employer inquiries, unlike the California Penal Code which preserved the right to use the past conviction in the future.

(4) Inspection of the sealed records shall be permitted by the courts only upon petition by the person who is the subject of those records and only to the persons named in the petition.

Utah Code Annotated Section 77-18-2 (1980).
(emphasis added).

The Utah Expungement statute contains no provision similar to that of the California penal code which clearly allowed inspection of past convictions, thereby distinguishing Meyer from the case at bar.

Appellant cites Amberson v. Leamons, Third District Court No. C85-6240 (November 25, 1985), in support of the proposition that "P.O.S.T. could properly deny certification to an individual whose felony conviction had been expunged under Colorado's deferred sentencing law." (Appellant's Brief at 10). This proposition correctly states the law, but does not apply to the present case.

The present case involves an expungement, not a deferred sentence. This distinction is critical where under the

Colorado deferred sentencing scheme, Colo. Rev. Stat. Section 16-7-403 (1978), required that the conditions imposed be similar to those conditions imposed on probation. Expungement, on the other hand, relieves the ex-offender of any 'probationary requirements "as though the arrest or conviction had not occurred." Utah Code Annotated Section 77-18-2(3).

The case of Dickerson v. New Banner Institute, Inc., 460 U.S. 103 (1982) is cited as "[p]articularly applicable to the instant case." (Appellant's Brief at 10). However, Dickerson is not applicable to the present case for the same reasons that Thompson v. Department of the Treasury, supra, is not. Both cases involve a violation of the federal firearms statute, 18 U.S.C. Section 922(g).

In effect, the Dickerson court held that the federal firearms disabilities imposed by Sections 922(g)(1) and (h)(1), were not removed by a state expunction where the federal statute provides for an "affirmative action" to remove the disability. Dickerson at 115.

In short, both Dickerson and Thompson involved a violation of the federal firearms statute which contained its own provisions for removal of the firearms disability and could not therefore be removed by a state expunction.

Finally, it is contended that where Utah Code Annotated Section 77-18-2 does not focus on the question of whether one is fit to be a police officer, it necessarily follows that the expungement statute does not apply to P.O.S.T. or the P.O.S.T. council. This conclusion is not correct.

Professor Boyce indicates in his affidavit that it was the legislative committee's intent to encourage rehabilitation of ex-offenders by enhancing the opportunity for employment. While it is not disputed that "a high standard of fitness and character pertains to police officers," it does not follow that P.O.S.T. is automatically authorized to second guess a court of law and justice on the issue of the degree of rehabilitation an individual has undergone.

Neither, the Utah expungement statute nor P.O.S.T.'s own enabling statute, Utah Code Annotated Section 67-15-10.5(1) provides P.O.S.T. with the authority to require that the petitioner unseal her records. If it had been the intent of the legislature to cloak P.O.S.T. with such authority, it would have done so.

The plain language of Utah Code Annotated Section 77-18-2(4) clearly indicates that the legislature did not intend to give P.O.S.T. the authority to consider sealed records, in stating:

(4) Inspection of the sealed records shall be permitted by the court only upon petition by the person who is the subject of those records and only to the persons named in the petition. (emphasis added)

Utah Code Annotated Section 77-18-2(4) (1980)

Nowhere in this provision is P.O.S.T. allowed to inspect the sealed records. Furthermore, while P.O.S.T.'s enabling statute, Section 67-15-1 (1985) sets forth as its purpose:

To better promote and insure the safety and welfare of the citizens of this state ...and to provide more efficient and professional law enforcement....

Utah Code Annotated Section 67-15-1 (1985).

and Section 67-15-10.5(1)(d) allows the director of P.O.S.T. to bring an action to revoke, refuse or suspend P.O.S.T.

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